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To The Members of Koeleman India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Koeleman India Private Limited (“the
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ('Ind AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its Profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Acl. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
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preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasanable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
contrals with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
contrals.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

-

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For Koeleman India Private Limi 9
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Other Matters

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been audited by
the predecessor auditor whose audit report expressed an unmodified opinion dated July 31, 2023 on
such financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter that instead of daily
backups, periodic backups of books of account and other relevant documents have been
maintained in electronic format.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B".

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

a. The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief as disclosed in
Note 40(d), the Company has not advanced, loaned or invested any funds (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”). with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief as disclosed in
Note 40(e), the Company has not received any funds from any persons or entities
including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and;

c. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause a & b contain any material mis-statement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.




vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, for the period where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled
and operated, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

For S.R Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005

For Koeleman India Private Limited

Uwe
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Partner
Membership Number. 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLUX5888 PY
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Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial
statements of Koeleman India Private Limited

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of the Company on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

]

i)

iii)

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and according to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of
the Property, Plant and Equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the Company,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(j) (d) of the
Order are not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and the rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (i) (e) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

In respect of Inventory:

a) On the basis of information and explanation provided, the Management has conducted
physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, except for goods-in-
transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory between physical inventory and book records were noticed on such physical
verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, during the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assels. According to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreement with
the books of account of the Company.(Refer foot note of Note 14(b) to the financial
statements). The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits by any financial
institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither made any
investments, nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans to any of the Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not
applicable to the Company.

For Koeleman India Rrivate Limitgd"
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iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

wiii)

ix)

x)

in our opinion and according te information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any investment, provided any loans, guarantee or security covered under Sections 185 &
Section 185 of the Act. Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(iv)) of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and had no
unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act in respect of goods manufactured by it and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or
complete.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. Further, no undisputed statutory dues were outstanding
as on last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the dale
they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, there were no dues in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (vii) (a) which
has not been deposited by the Company on account of any dispute, except for the following:

Name of | Nature of dues | Amount Amount Pericd to | Forum where
statue ( Z lakh) paid under | which the | dispute is pending
Protest (2 | amount
lakh) relates
KGST & | Goods and
CGST  Act, | Service Tax 16.47 1.55 FY 18-19 Joint Commission
2017 of Commercial
Taxes (Appeals) |

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In respect of loans or other borrowings taken by the Company, according to the information and
explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us:

a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

¢. The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes far which they were obtained.

d. No funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e. The Company doesn't have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(2)&(f) of the Order are not applicable.

(@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) (a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.




xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares of
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given [0 us, no whistle-blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,, all transactions
entered with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the financial stalements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Further in pursuance of section 177, Company being a private Company is not required
to form audit committee and accordingly the provisions of section 177 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to have an internal audit system u/s 138 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause (xiv) (a) & (b) of the order are nol applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) {a) of the order are not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year. Accordingly. provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (b) of the order are not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the order are not
applicable.

(d) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have more than one
CIC in the Group. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither incurred any

cash losses in the financial nor in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. No issues,

xix)

objections or concern were raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our review of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other infermation accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based an
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

d Sign

Authorise

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY



that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) The provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company, accordingly the provisions of
clause (xx) (a) & (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is not required
to prepare consolidated financial statements since it doesn't have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Koeleman India Private Limitea
For S.R Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number:001478N/N500005

A D
(Sandeep Dinodia)

Partner
Membership Number: 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLUX5888
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial
statement of Koeleman India Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Koeleman
India Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
1o financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial conlrols, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial stalements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005

N\

(Sandeep Dinodia)
Partner
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As AL As Al
i csoni NotoNo.  warn 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a) 2,155.54 2.131.22
{b) Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 12.95 12,85
{c} Right of Use of Assel 4 3029 .
(d) Other intangible assels 5 1.14 1.50
() Financial assels
i) Other financial assets ] 11.69 .77
{fh Non current lax assets (net) 7 5022 21.57
(g) Other non-current assels 8 106.39 .
2,368.22 2,183.11
Current Asseis
(a) Inventories ] 1.251.10 1.385.97
{b) Financial assels
i} Trade receivables 10 2,190.18 2,273.82
i) Cash and cash equivalenls 11{a) 01016 35.82
iif) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 11{b} 508 -
i) Other financial assets 6 14.42 1191
(c) Other current assals 8 657.50 563.32
5,028.45 4,270.84
Total assets 7,396.67 6.453.95
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 176.02 170.02
(b) Other equity 13 3.775.08 3.152.15
3,954.10 3,
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
i) Berrowings 14(a) 7.28
ia) Lease liabilites 4 19.77 -
(b) Provisians 15 38.08 18.95
(c) Delerred tax liabilites (net) 16 278.23 280.56
(d) Cther non-current liabilities 17 808 10.06
351.45 309.57
Current Liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities.
i} Borrowings 14(b) 1.877 4% 1,442,306
ia) Lease liabilities 4 10.54 -
i) Trade payables 18
{A) lotal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 202 66 94.71
(B) total out g dues of olhar than micro and
small enterprises T71.34 1,166 84
iii) Other financial kabilities 19 362 34,50
(b) Other current habiliies 17 223.87 6565
(c) Provisions 15 1.60 909
3,091.12 2,813.21
Total equity and liabilities 7,396.67 5,453.95
Summary of Malerial Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial stalements.

As per our Report of even date allached

For S.R.Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number: 001478N/NS00005

g
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Partner
Membership number - 083689
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: (i ?WL'L
I3 JUR LY

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Koeleman India Private Limited

W’

{Vikas Kumar)
Director
[DIN : 10118305])
Place Gurugram

Date:
2 JUN 2024
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(Kapil Dev Kukreja)
Director
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Place: Gurugram
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

" For the year ended  For the year ended
i e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Income
Revenue from operations 20 11,457.05 8,747.92
Other income 21 121.84 3365
Total Income 11,578.66 B,781,57
Il Expenses
Cost of Matenal Consumed 22 6.813.72 4,205.32
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23 (47.51) 109.42
Employee benefits expense 24 070.48 984,39
Finance costs 25 95.39 54,85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 126.06 107.56
Other expenses 27 276411 2,879.95
Total Expenses 10,722.25 8,531,49
11l Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-11) 856.41 250.08
IV Exceptional items (net) 28 - (48.28)
v Profit before tax (llI-IV) B56.41 298.36
VI Tax expenses
Currant tax 29 22538 92.00
Deferred lax 1.08 1.72
Adjustment of tax related to earlier years (1.88) (6.51)
224.59 87.21
Vil Profit after tax (V-V1) §31.82 211.15
VIl Other comprehensive income
i. Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasuremnent of defined benefit obligation (12.31) (4.24)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profil or loss 3.42 118
(8.89) 3.06
IX Total comprehensive income for the year net of tax (VIi+Vill) 6522.93 208.09
e
X Earnings per equity share 30
Basic (in ) 352.93 117.95
Diluted (in ¥) 35293 117.95

Summary of Malerial Accounting Policies

The accompanying noles are integral par of the financial statements,
As per our Report of even date attached

For S.R.Dinodia & Co. LLP

Chanered Accountants

Firm's registration number: 001478N/NS00005

\ D

e

(Sandeep Dinodia)
Partner
Membership number . 083689

Place of Signalure: New Delhi
Date ) W

JLR

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

W

(¥ikas Kumar)

Director
[DIN

10118303]

Place: Gurugram

Date:

Koeleman India Private Limited

<o
(Ka ukreja)
Director
[DIN - 10043713]

Place: Gurugram
Date’, i
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Koeleman India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended For the year ended
et March 31, 2024 March 34, 2023
A
Net profit before tax 856.41 29837
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation 12227 107.56
Nel (gain) / loss/ on disposal of Property. plant and equipment 2. 56.95
Interest Expanses on Lease Liability 0.95 -
Interest income from Fixed deposit (0.15) (1.63)
Amortisation of Government grant (2.08) (2.15)
Finance Cost 9539 54,85
Operating profit befare working capital changes 1,076.72 513.85
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 8364 (189.00)
(Increase)/decrease in Other financial Assels (4. 43) (5.87)
{Increase)/decrease in Other Assels (200.57) (154.64)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 134.87 (280.05)
[ i ) in trade b (287.55) 67.65
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 275 (6.84)
Increasel{decrease) in Other financial Liabilities (31.86) 21.90
Increase/{decrease) in Other Liabilites 158.31 (19.17)
Cash flow from operating activities 930.88 (52.07)
Income tax paid (net) (249.5T) (239.66)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 681.31 [291}3!
B Cash flow from Investing activities:
Purchase of PPE, including capital work in progress, capital creditors and capital advances (145.55) (325.34)
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 077 25.08
Invetsment in deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and uplo 12 months (5.09) -
Interest received 0.15 163
Not cash flow fromi(used in) investing activities (B) [142;7_3} 298.63,
C Cash flow from financing activities;
Proceeds from long-term Borrowings - -
Repayment of long-lerm Borrowings (41.61) (88.86)
Repayment of lease liabilties (4.26) -
Maovement in shorl-term Borrowings (309.96) 740,68
Dividend Paid - (179.02)
Finance Cost pad (9541) (55.11)
Not cash (used in)flow from financing activities (C ) (451.24) 417.65
D Net(decrease)lincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 80.34 (172.67)
E Cash and cash equivalenis al the beginning af the year (170.02) 265
F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) (refer note 11(a) & 11(b)) (B9.88) (170.02)

The above Cash flow statements has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 as notified under

Y section 133 of the Companias Act, 2013, as applicable.

Summary of Matgrial Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As par our Report of even date allached

For S.R.Dinodia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 001478N/NSD0005

Koeleman India Private Limited

]
) W2 J
d S’ / .Y_( -
(Sandeep Dinodia) {Vikas Kumar) (Ka Kukraja)
Parner Director Dwrector
Membership numbet - 083639 [DIN : 10118305] [DIN : 10043713]
Place of Signature: New Delhi Place: Gurugral lace: Gurugram
Date Date: ate. N o]
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended March 31, 2024
[(All amounts are in ¥ fakh, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Changes in share

Changes in share

¥ Balance as at Balance as at
Particulars Balance as at April 1, 2022 eapital during the March 31, 2023 capital during the March 31, 2024
year yoar
Enuity Share Capital 179.02 - 17902 - 179.02
B. Other @
Reserves & Surplus
. Capital
Particuises Redemption General Retained earnings ol
it resenve
|Balance as at April 1, 2022 46.00 118 3,075.90 3,423.08
Profit for the year - - 21115 21115
Other income (net of taxes) x < (3.06)
. Remaasurement of the net defined benefit obligationfassets - (3.06)
Divrdend - - (179 02! 175.02)
46.00 1.18 3,104.97 3,152.15
- - 631,82 6318
(Other comprehanaive income (nat of taxes)
- Remeasurement of the net defined benefit - - 8 (889
Balance as at March 31, 2024 A46.00 1.18 3,727.90 3,775.08
Summary of Material Accounting Palicies 2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For 5.R.Dinodia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Charterad Accountants
Firm's registration number: 001478NMN500005
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Date 19 JUN 2024
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Dale: o .0 "

Limited

L

{Kapll Dev Kukreja)
Durector

{DIN ; 10043713)

Place. Gurugram
Date: ¢

i




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Z lakh, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background of the company

Koeleman India Private Limited (the company’) was incorporated on 20 September 1995 as a Private Limited [CIN
U01120KA1995PTCO1B785] under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1956 having Registered office at
No.74/75(Ground Floor),12th Cross, 2nd Lane, HVR Layout, Bhattarahalli, Knshnarajapuram Bengaluru Karnataka 560049 and
factory located at Survey No. 38, NH 75 (Oid NH4) Narasapur Bypass Kolar taluk & District,Karnataka — 5631 33 and is primarily
engaged in manufacturing and exporting of pickled gherkins to USA, Europe and other countries.

2. Statement on Material Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the Material Accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial statements. These polices
have been consistently applied to all years presanted, unless otherwise stated,

Accounting policies have been consislently appled except where a nawly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision 1o an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use

i) Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statemants :
Statement of Compliance:
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under the historical cost convention
except for centain class of financial assets/ liabilities, share based payments and net liability for defined benefil plans that
are measured at fair value. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company unless otherwise
stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the company’s functional
currency. All amounts in the financial statement and accompanying notes are presented in 'lakh’ and have been rounded-
off to two decimal places uniess stated otherwise.

Fair value measurement
The company measures financial instruments at fair vaiue at each reporting date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either

+in the pnincipal market for the asset or liability, or

« in the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
Certain accounting palicies and disclosures of the company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilites. The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of
fair values.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
« Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities thal the entity can
access al the measurement date;
« Level 2 inpuls are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, thal are observabie for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and
« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The company uses valualion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable
inputs.

ii) Use of estimates
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires the management of the company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of asset
and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of income and expense for the period presented

Estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future pariods.

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Information about significant areas of estimation and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following areas:

« Useful lives of intangible assets: The company amortises intangible assets on a straight-line basis over eslimated useful
lives of the assets. The useful life is estimated based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition and other economic factors such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances
and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. The
estimated useful lile is reviewed at least annually

« Expected credit losses on financial assets: The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumplions
about risk of dafault and expected timing of collection. The company uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's history of collections, customers
creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

+ Impairment tesling: The company has reviewed its carrying value of long term invesiments at the end of each reporting
pericd. for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying amount of assets
may not be recoverable. If the recoverable value, which is based upon economic circumstances and future plan is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accountad.

- Contingencies - Management's judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy

- Income Tax and Deferred Tax : Management's judgment is required for the calculation of pravision for income laxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilites. The company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the
amounts reported in the financial statements.

+ Property, Plant and Equipment : Internal technical or user team assesses the remaining useful life of the Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets. Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

iii) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services 10 its customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services, when the company acts as a principal

The fallowing specific recognition crtena must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of traded and processed / manufactured goods:

Revenue from sale of traded and processed / manufactured goods is recognised upon delivery of the goods and lile have
passed and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideralion that will be derived from the
sale of traded and processed / manufaciured goods and regarding its collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net
of taxes, sales returns and trade discounts.

Other income:

Interest Income on fixed deposits

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, using effective interest
rate (EIR) method.

iv) Inventories
Inventories comprise all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present
location and condition
(a) Invenlories of Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Stores & Spares and Other Agri Field Inputs are valued at lower of
Cost or Net Realisabie Value (NRV) and issued to production on FIFQ (First-in-First-out) basis. Cost for this purpose
means last purchase price plus any expenses incurred to bring the inventary to its present location and condition

(B) Semi finished goods is valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value (NRV). Cost for this purpose comprises of raw
material cost and appropriate share of labour & overheads.

(c) Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost of production or net realizable value, Cost for this purpose comprises of
raw material cost and appropriate share of labour & overheads.

For Koeleman Indi
1L
Authorised Signatory
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

v) Property, Plant and Equipment

vi) Leases

Recognition and measurement:

On transition to Ind AS, transition date being April 1, 2021, the company has adopled optional exemption under Ind AS
101 to measure Property, Plant and Equipment at fair value. Consequently, the fair value has been assumed to be deemed
cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition. Subsequently Property, plant & equipment are stated al
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The historical Cost includes
purchase price and any directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent cost is included in the asset carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefit associated with item will flow to the entity and cost of item can be measured
reliably. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item is depreciated separately. All other repair and mainienance expenses are charged to profit & loss account in the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Assels acquired but not ready for use are classified into Capital work in progress and stated at direct cost and related
incidental expenses.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation Methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
have been provided on the Straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companias Act,
2013 The estimate useful life of the asset is given below:

Type of Asset Life (in years)
Building Ranging from 3 to 30
Plant and machinery Ranging from 3 to 15
Furniture and Fixtures 748

Vehicles 10

Office equipment T&10

Computers 5

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from the date on which asset is ready for use.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property, Plant and Equipment under installation/under development as at the
Balance Sheet date. Advances paid towards the acguisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment
not available for use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress’.

Intangible Assets

An Intangible Assets is recognised when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of a separately acquired intangible asset compnses of its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and any directly attributable cost of prepanng the
assel for its intended use

Amortisation of Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The
software is amortised over a period of 5 Years. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impaimment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible assel may be impaired. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Where the company is a lessee

Lo
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Right-of-use assets:

At the commencement of lease, right-of-use asset is recognized at cost. Cost comprises of initial measurement of lease
liability, lease payments made before commencement date less lease incentives, initial direct costs incurred by the
company and estimate of any dismantling cost

Right-of-use assets are amortized over the lease term.
The nght-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment. Adjustment is made for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability:
At the commencement of lease the company measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments not paid at
commencement date The lease payments are discounted using the company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liabilities are subsequently increased by interest on the lease liability and reduced by the lease payments. It is
adjusted to reflect any reassessment or laase modifications.

Short term lease and low value leases:

The company does not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shori-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low value essets. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

vii) Impairment of tangible assets

The company assesses al each Balanca Sheel dale whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An
assel is freated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the fulure cash flows to their
present value based on an appropriate discount factor, An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an
assel in earlier accounting penods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

viii) Employee Benefits
{a) Short term employee benefits

Liabilites for wages and salanes, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within 12
months afier the end of the penod in which the employees render the related services are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of he reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected (o be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Other long-tarm amployee benefits

These liabilities for earned leave are not expectad to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the pariod in
which the employees render the relaled services. They are therefore r d as the p t value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by the employees upto the end of the reperting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting pencd that
have terms approximaling to the terms of the related obligations. Re-measurements as a rasult of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilites in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditianal
right to defer the settiement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardiess of when the actual settlement
is expectad to occur

(c) Post-employment employee benefits
The company operates the following post-employment schemes:
1, Defined contribution plans
The company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an
expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made at the determined rate as and when services are
rendered by the employees. The company's contribution is recognized as an expensa in the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

2. Defined benefit plans
The company's Gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation i1s measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate based on the
market yield on government securities of a malurity penod equivaient to the weighted average matunty profile of the
defined benefit obligations at the Balance Sheet date.




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in 2 lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses is recognised in other comprehensive income and is reflected
in retained earmings and the same is not eligible to be reclassified to profit or loss

Defined bensfit costs compnsing current service cosl. past service cost, interest cost and gains or losses on
settiements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. . Gains or losses on
settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognised as
expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtalment and when the company recognises related restructuring
costs of termination benefits.
ix) Foreign Currency transactions
Foteign cutrency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the ransactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re- measurement of monetary
items denominated in foreign currency translated into rupees at year-end exchange rates are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
as income or expanse in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair valuz was determined.

x) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability er equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels or financial
liabilities, @s appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Lass.

Subsequent measurement:

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cosl if the asset is
held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and the
contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and
interest on the pnncipal amount outstanding

L)

Financial assels carried al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financial asset is subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of
the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(c

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value.

Id

Financial liabilities at amortised cost Financial liabilites includes intarest bearing loans and borrowings which are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 10 the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets; The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nghts to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party or the transfer qualified for derecognition under Ind AS 109

Derecognition of financial liabilites: The company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For Koeleman [nd Private Limited

Authorised Signatory
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assats The company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECLY} for the
financial assets which are not measured at fair value through profit of loss. In relation to loss allowance for financial assets
(excluding trade receivables), ECL's are measured at an amount equal to 12- month ECL, unless there has been
significant increase in credit nisk from initial necognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL

For trade receivables or any contractual right 10 receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.

xi) Compound instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

A conversion option that will be settied by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the company's own equity instruments is an equity instrument

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
nen-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversian or at the instrument's maturity date

The conversion option classified as equity is delermined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income taxes effects, and is
not subsequently remeasured.

xii) Government grant
The company is entitled to subsidies from govarnment in respect of manufacturing units located in specified regions. Such
subsidies are measured at amounts receivable from the gavernment which are non-refundable and are recognized as
income when there is a reasonable assurance that the company will comply with all necessary conditions attached to them,
Income from subsidies is recognized on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs that are intended lo
be compensated by such subsidies are recognized. Income from the above grants and subsidies are presented under
Other Income.

xiii) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period altributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Equity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the calculation
of basic earnings per share

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equily shares.

xiv) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject ta an insignificant risk of
change in value.

xv) Statement of Cash Flows
Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrals and accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and item of income
and expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing, and financing
actiities of the company are segregated.

xvi) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax: The curent tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current period taxable income based on
the applicable enacted income tax rate in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1951 adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, items that are never taxable / deductible and unused tax losses /
tax credits

Currant tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the enlity has a legal enforceable right fset and intends either to




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their corresponding carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they anise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction (other than in a business combination} that effects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovarad

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in Equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCl or
Equity respectively.
xvii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when there is a present cbligation as a resuit of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the present
obligatians at the balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. These are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the best current eslimate.

Contingent liabilites are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control
of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligations or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

xviii) Segment Reporting:
« Identification of Operating segments
The company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products
manufactured and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and as reviewed by the Chief operating decision maker of the company.

« Segment Policies
The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

xix) Operating Cycle/ C t and Non-Current Classification
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as twalve months for the purpose of curmant/non-Current
classification of assets and liabilities.

The company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current non-current classification.

An assel is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

+  Expecled to be realised or intended {o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
+ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

+  Expected lo be realised within twelve months after thereporting period, or

+  Cash or Cash Equivalent.

All other assets are ciassified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+  ltis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle.

«  Itis heid primarily for the purpose of trading.

« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+ There is no unconditional nght to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curment
assets and liabilities.

For Ko i Pri
eleman Indﬁ Private Limited
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Koeleman India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3{a}: Property, plant and equipmant* .
Plant & urniture

Particulars Fr::::lﬂ Buildings  Machinery and Vahicles 9’““ E Total

[Note b fixtures ik pllod o
Gross block (Cost/Deemed cost)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,012.50 480,32 392.10 14,89 11585 10.03 3.87 2,029.76
Additions - 191.04 185.02 - - 128 037 rrm
Disposals/adi. e 8.42 8.74) - (84.75) - . (101.91)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,012.50 662.94 568.38 14.89 31.20 11.31 4.34 2,305.56
Additions. - 2573 100.41 - 1357 - 080 148.51
Disposals/adjustments - _(377) (0.53) (0.16) = (0.00) -~ (4.46)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,012.50 684.90 677.26 14.73 44.77 11.31 5.14 2,450.61
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2022 . 23.79 44.58 2.86 14.07 205 0.89 88.24
Charge for the year - 3327 5344 296 12.95 227 1.09 105.98
Depreciation charge on disposals . (0.47) (4.25) x (15.16) - - (19.88)
IAdjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 56.59 93.77 5.82 11.86 4.32 1.88 174.34
Charge for the year - 38.09 71.25 3.03 6.03 245 066 121.51
Depreciation charge on disposals - (0.47) (0.16) {0.15) - - - ©.78)
IAdjustments
Balance as at March 21, 2024 - 94.21 164.86 8.70 17.89 6.77 2.64 295.07
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,012.50 590.69 512.40 6.03 26.88 4.54 2.50 2,155.54
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,012.50 606.35 474.61 9.07 19.34 6.99 236 2131.22

*Refer Note No-14(a) and 14(b), for Information on Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security by the company.

[This space has been left blank intentionally)




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(b): Capital work-in-progress

Particulars e o An A
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at April 01, 2023 1265 65.02
Add. Additions dunng the year 12.95 12.65
Less: Amount Capitalised during the year 12.65 65.02
Balance as at April 01, 2024 12.96 12.65
L5 i
a) Breakup of Capital Work in Progress is as follows: As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Piant and Equipment - 12.65
Building 12.95 -
12.95 12.65
b) Aging schedule of CWIP
As at March 31, 2024
Amount In CWIP for a period of
cwip Leoss than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
yoar Total
Project in progress 12.95 - . . 12.95
Projects temporarily suspended s - r = =
Total 12.95 - - - 12.95
As at March 31, 2023
Amount In CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mora than 3 yoars
r Total
Project In progress 1265 = 12.65
P:o'leim temporarily suspended - =
Total 12.65 - - 12.65

¢) There are no capital-work-in progress as at March 31. 2024 and as at April 01, 2023 whose completion is overdue of has exceeded ils cost

as compared lo its ariginal plan,

d) Borrowing cost of T 2.18 lakh (March 31, 2023; Nil} capitalised during the year in CWIP building.

For Koeleman India Private Limited

[This space has been lefl biank intentionally]
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Koeleman India Private Limited -

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
[All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Right of use asset

Description of Assets Leasehold Land Total
|. Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2022 . £
Additions - .
Deletions - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 = o
Additions 3408 34.08
Deletions i
Balance as at March 31, 2024 34.08 34.08

I, A lated amorti
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - -
Amonization expense for the year * s -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balanco as at March 31, 2023 - .
Amortization expense for the year 3.79 3.79
Eliminated on disposal of assets - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.79 378

1L, Nat earrying amount (11}
As at March 31, 2024 30.29 30.29
As al March 31, 2023 s -

As AL As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of year - B
Addition in lease liabilites 3362 -
Inmerest expense on lease liabilities 0.85 -
Repayment of lease liabilties 428 -
Balance at the end of the year 30.11 -

Non-current lease liabilities 977 -
Current lease liabilities 10 54 -
Toltal lease liabilities 301 -

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amortization expense on Right-of-use (ROU) assels recognized dunng the year are -
Imeres| expense on lease liabiity 095 -
Carrying amount of ROU assets as on the reporting date 30.29 -
Tolal cash outfiow for leases 426 -
Lease liability as on the reparting date 0.3 -
Income on Security deposit discounting 005 -

At

Panticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 1278 .
One lo three years na2 .
More than thige years : -
Total 11 -

For the yoar ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total cash outfiow for leases 426 -
There are no contingent leasellicense foos payments.

As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

e signato™y
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Other Intangible Assets

Gross block (CostUDeemed cost)
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions

Disposals/adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals/adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Charge for the year

Depreciation charge on disposals /Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Charge for the year

Depreciation charge on disposals /Adjusiments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Balance as at March 31, 2023

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

Software Total
5.06 5.08
5.06 5.06
5.06 5.08
1.58 1.58
1.58 1.58
3.16 3.16
0.76 0.76
3.92 3.92_
1.14 1.14
— ——
1.80 1.50
Limited

Authorised Signatory
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Non currént Currant
As At As At As At As At

Mot B Ol el sents March 31,2024 _March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Secunty deposits

« Govt Depanments 9.10 B.76 % 4

- Others 234 0.76 1165 1080
- Trade Deposit {refer note 'a & b’ balow)™ 0.25 025 = -
Interest Recavable on FD - - 0.o7 -
Agvance to employee . - 270 i

11.69 9.77 14.42 1191

a) Trade deposit 1s re- bie on of the busi transaction with the vendor (Interest ree)

b) Trade deposit are not in the nature of loans and advances hence classified as other financial assels,

*Tha amount shown above has been reclassed for comparative period i.e. FY 2022-23 from Other Current Assel to Other Financial Assel However,
it does not have any matenal impact on the information in the Balance Sheet at the baginning of the preceding penod Therefore, as per para 40A of
Ind AS -1 - ‘Presentaton of Financial Statements, the third Balance Sheet as at beginning of preceding period has not been prepared

As At As At
Note T: Non current tax assets (net) March 31, 2024 Ma 1,2023
Advance Tax (net of provision)® 5022 2157
Nz T

* The above mentioned amount includes € 23.40 lakh pertaining to financial year 2021-22 and earlier years. The company is in the process of
tracking the year wise break up as it penaing (o period prior 1o its acuisition by new management

Non current Current
As At As At As At As At
NELe:5: Other 3339TS March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 202
Capital advance 98 41 - . .
Balances with Government authonties - - 23885 342 86
Amount paid under protest 155 . - .
Balance with Gratuity Trust [Net of Gratuity Liability Riefer Note-32] - - 1114 &N
Prepaid Expenses 643 - 11830 4504
Export Incentives Recervable - - 264.10 80.05
Advances to suppliers and sefvice providers - - FLRA 8977
Other Receivables - . - 17.29
106,39 : e SO e 38332,

’ . As At As At
Note 9: Inventories March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Raw Matena's 571.34 75328
Work-in-Progress 267 24 306 41
Fimshed Goods 401.87 315.19
Stores & Spares 1065 11.08
Total 1@51.10 IISSB 87

a) Refer Note No-14(a) and 14(b). for Information on above assets being pledged as securnty by the company

b} For mode of valuabon Refer Note 2{iv)

c) Pericdically, the company physical y heid and reviews the ageing and the net realisable value The company normally makes
mmmmmmm:mmillh.wmlw.nskwoemoimw\duswmmmm ¥ Op g ]

factors. which could affect the ability o sell, As at Balance shee! date the company has no siow moving/ non moving inventoey.

For Koeleman Ipdid)Private Limited

Authorised Signatory




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

= As At As At
Note 10: Trade receivables March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Recewable, considered good, unsecured 219018 227382
Trade Recewables credit impaired . 2
Less: Provision for expected credit loss * -
' 2,190.18 2,273.82
Unaisputed Trace Recavables - credit impaired - .
Less - Loss allowances® * =
2,190.18 2,273.8.

Trade Recelvablo ag
As on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following period from the date of payment

Particulars Not Laess than & months 1.2
D Total
ue & months 1o 1 yoar years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivabies - Considered good 1,659.36 53082 - 2158018
(1) Undisputed Trade Recaables - Considered
Doubtful
(1) Disputed Trade Recewvables - Considered Good - - . . -
(iv) Disputed Trade Recavables - Considered Doubtful - . . - =
Total 1,659.36 530.82 . * 2,150.18
As on March 31, 2023:
Outstanding for following period from the date of payment
Particulars Not Less than 6 months 12
Due & month o 1 year __years b o

(1) Undisputed Trade Recevabies - Considered good 227383 - 018 - 227382
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered
Doubtful
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - . = )
(v} Disputed Traoe Receivabies - Considered Doubtiul - - - - =
Total 227363 - 0.19 . 2,273.82
a) Mo trade of other receivable are dus from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jaintly with any other person
b} Trade receivables are generally on credit terms of not more than 91 days
©) Refer Note 14{a) and 14(b), for Information on above assets being pledged as secunty by the company
Note 11(a): Cash and cash equivalents As AL As AL

h 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 002 011
Balances with banks
-Current accounts 91014 BN

910,16 35,82

a) The nature of security for overdraft facility are
Current account consists of overdraft faciity having debit balance, Overdraft facity has sanctioned limit of ¥ 500 lakh at MCLR plus Spread for
appiicatie MCLR peniod rate of inlerest (Secured by exclusive charge by way of mongage of feehald factory land & bullding and exclusive
hypothecaton charge on all existing & future current assets and movable fored assets)
b) Cash and cash equivalents foe the purpose of cash flow statement are as under:
As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance sheet 51016 3582
Less. Bank overdrafts repayable on demand and used for cash management purposes 955 B4 20584
Cash and cash equivalents in the tof cash flows (89.68) (170.02)

As Al As At

Note 11(b): Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with onginal matunty of more than 3 months and upto 12 months®

*pladged with bank as secunty against for getting merchant exporter licence from APEDA.
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Koeleman India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are In ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12: Equity Share Capital

a)

b)

Share Capital
Particulars As At As At
h 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
3.00,000 (March 31, 2022 3,00,000) equity shares of 2 100 each 300.00 300.00
300.00 300.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity
share capital
1,758,020 (March 31, 2023 1,79,020) equity shares of ¥ 100 each 179.02 179.02
179.02 179.0
e
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
Particulars Numbers Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2022 178,020 179.02
Add: Share issued during the year H P
Less: Share buy back during trhe year . .
Balance as at March 31, 2023 179,020 179.02
Add: Share issued during the year - -
Less. Share buy back duting the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 179,020 179.02
The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of
capital:

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 100 per share Each sharencider is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
propased by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting, except in case of interim dividend. In the

avent of liquidation, the equity sharenciders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distnbution of all p jal amounis, in proportion
10 theur shareholding
d) Details of equity shares held by ultimate holding company / holding company and / or their subsidiaries:
As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

e)

MNumberof % of holding

Namae of shareholder shares In the class

% of holding in
Numbar of shares the class _

M/s. QAGRI Farm Private Limided {w e I february 27, 2023)"* 170,020 100.00% 175,020 97IT%

Ms. Koeleman Foods International b.v,, Holland (ceased we f February 27, 2023) - 0.00% 4 000 2.23%
179,020 100.00% 179,020 100.00%
** Including nominee shareholders
Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% of total Issued equity shares
As At As AL
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Kisen b ARt Number of % of holding Number of st % of holding in
sha in 1 (4
Ms OAGRI Farm Private Limited (w el february 27, 2023)"" 179.020 100.00% 175,020 97.7T%
Ms Koeleman Foods International b v, Holland {ceased w.e f february 27, 2023) . 0.00% 4,000 2.23%
175,020 100.00% 179,020 100.00%
** Including nominee shareholders
Shareholding of Promoters are as below:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year l s A 4 o % Change during
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 the
Mame of PromotersiPromaoters Group %of total shares  |year
MWs. OAGRI Farm Private Limited (w.e.f. february 27, 2023)™ 176,020 100.00% 175,020 §7.77% 223%
M's Koeleman Foods International b.v., Holland (upto January 18, 2024) . P i i SHiY 223%
Total 178,020 | 100.00% 175,020 100.00% | 0.00%)

** Including nominee sharehoiders
Aggregate number of shares issued for cONS-deration othar than cash, Donus shares ssued and shares bought back dunng the penod of hive years immaedataly
preceding the reporing cate s NIL
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 13 : Other Equity As AL As At
—_March 31,2024  March 31. 2023
Capeal Redemption Reserve 4600 46.00
General reserve 118 1.18
Retained Eamings 3TN 3,104 57
3,775.08 3,152.15
Notes:

i) For Movement during the penod in Cther Equity, refer “Statement of Change in Equity”
i) Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves

a) Capital Redemption reserve
Capital Resarve was carmed forward on account of buy back of shares in the F.Y 2014-15 & 201617

b) Genaral reserve
Retained eamings are the profits that the company has earmed till date that are transfered to general reserve

c) Retaingd Earnings

Retained eamings are the profils that the company has eamed til date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends of other distributions paid to
shareholders All the profits made by the company are transferred 1o retainad earnings from statement of profil and loss. However, retained eamings
was adjusted by ¥ 997 77 lakh (March 31, 2023 * 2 997.77 lakh) on account of fair valuation of property, plant and eguipment done at transition date
that has been considered as deemed cost on ransibon 1o Ind AS and which is not availabie for distribution,

s 5o

\/\
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For Koeleman India Priva Limited
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Koeleman India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

i} The nature of security for overdraft facility are
Owararaht -Sanctoned Limit of # 4000 takh at MCLR plus Spread for applicable MCLR period rale of inlérest. [Secured by exclusivi first charge on entine current assets of the company both

current & future and second charge on Immovable Fized assat of the company and movable fived assets of the company both current & Future)
of current assets filed by the company with the bank) with the books of accounts is as follows :

iil) Summary of recanciliation for the i
(Quarter Ended Value Date Stock and debtors | Stock and debt R of
as per books of as per quarterly (A-B) discrepancies
statement
1AL ___ B
[ Juna 23 June 23 13.40 285713 (4373} Marly on account of
tember 23 Sel bar 23 4,008.75 4,093.46 (B4 71) lloreign exch
December 23 December 23 345870 3,507.34 (40.64) |fuctuation.
Mainly due o sales
March 24 March 24 34028 35484 (107 B6) [reversal in pliance
with Ind AS 115
Non current Currant
: A5 At As At As At As At
Hote 18 Provisions March 31,2024 March 31,2023 h 31, 2024 March 31
Provision for employee benafits®
Laave encashment 3808 18.95 160 909
38.08 16,95 160 9.09_
: As At As M
Nota 16: Deferred tax liabilities (Net) March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Diftarence between bock balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 87.89 91.26
Revaluation on land 20754 207.54
Prowision for employee benefits and athers- DTA {18.81) (18.24)
(8.39) =
Je2s 2005,
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise 1)

il

Mon currant Current

5 As At As Al As At As At
Mt 12 Onhar Sab e March March 31, 20 March 31 March 31, 2023
Delarred government grant a9 1008 206 215
Statutory dues ** - - 72 43180
Advance from customers - - 144 60 18.90

X 1005 22387 5565

= The amount shown above inciuded bonus payahle has been reclassed for comparatve period | @ FY 2022-23 from Other Currant Financial Liability to Other Current Liabilty. However, it
does not have any material impact on the miormation in the Balance Sheet at the beginning of the preceding period. . B8 per para 40A of Ind AS -1 - Presontation of Financial
Stalements. the third Balance Sheel as at beginning of precading period has not been prepared

: As At As I
HoteAR e Bma M March 31,2024 March 31,2023
-total putstanding dues of micro and small anlerprisas 202 86 9471
<totat putstanding dues of creditors ather than micsa and
small enlerprisas™ T34 1,166.84

974,00 1.55

+= The amouni shown above included salary and olher benafits has been reclassed for comparative penod i e. FY 2022-23 from Other Current Financial Liabity to Trade Payables. However,

it does not have any malenal impact on the information in the Balance Sheet at the beginning of the preceding pericd. Therefore, as per para 40A of Ind AS -1 - 'Presentation of Financial
. the third B Sheet as al beg g of p g period has not been prepared.

a) Trade Payable ageing schedule:

As on March 31, 2024,

Particulars Outstanding for following w from the date of transaclion

Unbilied Not Due <1 year 4-2 yoars 2-3 years Total
i MSME - 202 66 - - - 202 86
(i} Others 12438 5§73.51 4318 1.41 2B.85 77134

(i) Disputed dues - MSME
() Desputed dues -Others - -

T76.17 4318 1.41 28.86 4974.00




109 3NUL QAN

fioieubis pasuouiny

n Seaud epul ueLli@|eoy Jod

Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As on March 31, 2023:

Outstanding for following period from the date of transactio
Particulars Unbillod Mol Due 12 years 2-3years Tkl
i) MSME - CEL - . 5471
{ii) Others 13125 Ba2T 07s 2886 1.1686.84
(iil) Disputed dues - MSME = = = - -
{iv}) Desputed dues -Others - - - %
Total 131.25 TrT42 0.75 28.86 1,261.55
As AL As At
March 31, 2024 March 023
) of the above, rade payable lo
-~ related parties 8173 57.83
-athers 88227 1,208.72
974.00 1,261.55
¢} Trade payables are non-inlarest baaring and are narmally seltled within 45-day terms.

d) As per Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013 and as certified by the management, the amount due 1o Micro, & small enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2000 is a5 under

. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Madium
Enterprises Davelopment Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

Thie amount of interest due and payable for the period of deiay in making payment (which has baen
paid but beyond the appainted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Micra, Small and Madium Enlerprises Development Act, 2008

¢ amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the and of each accounting year.

4 amount of further interest remaining due and payable even n the succeeding years, until such
 when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose of

ol a ble exp under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medum
ises Development Act, 2008

As At As At
Particulars
articul MWarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- The principal amount and the interest due thergon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier at the end af 3566
@ach accounting year.

g4




Koeleman India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Disclasure of payable lo vendars as defined under the *Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Devetopment Act, 20067 is based on the i i ilatile with regarding the
status of regisiration of such vendors under the said Act and as per the intimation recaived from them on made by the company, There are no due principal interest
payable for delayed pay 1o such a1 the Batance Sheet date excepl disclosed above.
As At As Al
Note 19: Other financial liabilities - Current March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
intarest sccrued but not due on bomowings 073 -
289 34.56

MTM Liabilty/{Assel) en Forward Contracts

382 3486

Note:
{a) There were no amounts which are required lo be ransferred, to the Invesior Education and Protection Fund by ihe company during the year,

[This space has baen left blank intentionally]



Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Revenue from operations

Sale of Products
- Expons
- Domestic
- Deemed Exports [Sale to other EOUSs)

Other Operating Revenues
- Sala of nputs to tarmers

- Export Incentives

- Scrap Sales

Note 21: Other Income

Interest Income on fied deposits
Unwinding interest on securnty ceposit
Foresgn exchange gain(icss)

Sundry balances written back
Daferred revenue grant

Note 22: Cost of Material Consumed

Raw materials consumed
Opening Stock

Agd Purchases dunng the year
Less: Closing Stock

Note 23: Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening Stock
Fimshed Goods.
Work-in- Progress

Closing Stock
Finished Goods
Workan- Progress

Changes in inventonas of finished goods and work-in-progress

Note 24:

benefits exg

Y

Salares, wages and bonus
Caonlribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity axpense
Stalf wellare expenses

Note 25: Finance costs

Interest Expenses on
- Working Capital Loan
- Over Draft
- Term Loan
- Verucle Loan
- Imerest on Lease Liability
Interest cn shortlall in payment of Advance tax

For the year anded For the year ended
"M 1, 2024 March 31
10,206.98 8,190.80
432.83 5400
- 8547
d54 07 308.08
35535 9354
782 623
11,457.05 8,747.92
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
015 163
0.05 =
11576 2087
358 -
2,08 215
121.61 31.65
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
753.28 31337
668178 483523
571.34 753.28
681372 4,395.32
For the year endod For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
31519 386.47
306 .41 344 55
62160 73102
401 87 31519
267.24 30641
668,11 621.60
(47.51) 109.42
For the year ended For the year ended
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
856.57 877.03
€8.53 65.80
1.22 1.38
3416 3018
§70.48 58439
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 h
8114 827
10.89 1218
1.81 T8
080 an
085 .
. 4.00

54.85
==




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise )

Note 26: Depreclation and ization expense For the year ended For the yaar ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciaton/Amortization of Tangible Assets 12151 105.88
Amorzation of Right-of-Use Assets ire .
Amortization of Intangible Assets 076 158
126,06 19755
" For the year ended For the year ended
Helh 27: Db S5penss March 31, 2024 March 31
Power & Fuel 247 .84 289,24
Contractual labour 1,040 16 B28.83
Consumablaes and stares 2132 2225
Water charges 6285 6156
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 82 00 79.48
- Others 128.77 121.69
Rent 46,45 18.34
Rates & Taxes 1543 3585
Bank Chargos 3202 16.35
Legal & Professional Charges 19.72 25079
Othar Suppon Services 81,45 3565
Payment o Auditors( refer note ‘a’ below) 6.50 6.75
Communication charges 1287 14.05
Travelling & Conveyance B3.43 57.57
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment's 29 56.95
Secunty expensa 41,32 41.26
Printing and stationery 623 548
Freight outward 61334 785.11
Commission 53.40 3283
Insurance 2562 39.56
Lab testing expense 16.33 17.94
Miszallaneous Expenses 24.16 2172
EXTZRT) 257995
F ar ended
Note (a) As statutory auditor * : u!!l' thnhy;: ';;;“ Fﬂ!!fimmr;! 2023
- For Audit 525 550
= For Tax audd 1.25 125
6.50 B.75
* Previous year figure represents payment made to erstwhile auditor
For the year ended Far the year ended
Note 28: Exceptional items (net) Ma n:hy;1 2024 Ma ’” 202
Loss From Floods - Siock * (48.28)
s (48.28)

During the previous financial year 2022-23, the company have

claim for ® 53 10 lakh relating to claim filed during financial year 2021

22 for loss of stock from fiood GST input credit of ¥ 4 82 lakh on input and input services was reversed and remaining ? 48.28 lakh was shown as

exceplional income

[This space has been left blank intentionally]




Koeleman India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless olherwise stalod)

Note 29: Taxes
(LA r 'l din$ ol Profit and Loss account
Particulars For the year ended  For the year snded
M. 1,20 March 31
Cusment Tax 2538 w2 00
Defered Tax 1.9 172
Adustment of tax relaled 1o sarer years {1.58) (851)
Iincome tax axpense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 22459 87.21
(B) Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 7023
Deferrad income tax on fe-measurement gai on defiried benefit plans 142 (e
{C) Tax reconciilation For the year ended  For the year ended
b March 3 3
Prof bafcrs Yex 85641 29037
Applicatia ta: rals 27 82% 27.82%
Income tax exponses calculated al above rate 738,35 8301
Tax Effect of
Effect of permanent differences - 062
Short Term Capital Loss CIF 1478 478
Others (8.80) 533
Reporied Income tax eapenss ﬂ,n 9372
(D) Deferred tax Movement
[Charged)l credited to:
1 Balance as al Other Balance as al
Ftculans (RTAJOTL April1,2023 | Profitorioss | comprenansive March 31, 2024
Incoma
On the dfference between book balance and
tax batance of property. plant and equipment ot LB B baecod o o
Revaluation of land DL 207 4 |0.00) - 207.54
Provision for empioyee benefits DTA) (18.24) 285 (3 42) {18.81)
Defermed Financing Cost (DTAY - (2.82) (282
Short term capaal loss 1DTA) . {4.78) - (4.76)
Mark to Markal For Ll iy (DTA) . (0,80 - X
(DTL) 280.55 imn ;uzi] 7824
[Charged)l credited to:
Baiance as at Other Balance as at
PaEsuhes ETAo. April1,2022 | Profitorioss | comprenensive |  Marcnat, 2023
Ingome
On the afference between book baiance and
tax batance of property, plant and equipment oTL [ET) (019 9128
{other than revaksabon)
Fevaluaton of land DTL 20754 . - 207.54
Provision lor employee bengfits (DTA) 118 87) 181 (118 AL LY)
(OTL) 280.01 172 (1.18 280.58

Note 30: Eamings Per Share
The amount conudered in ascenaning he por Share mmmmum.1umﬂmmammmwma

mmmwummm}fmmhmwummh puling por shaie the weighted average number of

dduted
shares consdoned for mmmwmmmwwwwdnummmmMmmdﬂmmﬁm .

" As At As At
Partioutacs March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023
TANBT Tax attrbutaie 10 Equity Sharehoiders. A (€ in lakh) 63182 anas
Na, of Shares outsianding ai the baginning of the year 179,020 176020
No of Shares outstandng al the end of the year 179,020 179,020
number of equity shares of ¥ 10/ each 170,020 179,020
EPS - Basic and Diuted (n T ) 3520 11785
Nominal Valus Per Share (n ¥ ) 100 00 100.00
Note 31: Contingent liabilities (1o the exteni not provided for)
Tha company has reviewnd al is pending claims, and other p g5 and nis adeg P i for q b wherevor i is dfficut
mmwwm-mummounmmlm.mmmﬂmbmununwwmﬁOWMWdWmm
vanous worities, the nas the same a3 Contingent Liabibes htion of the pr }

The company does nol expact the outcoma of these proceadngs 1o mlmumuu;vutﬂldmwwﬂmﬂwm Also. the campany does not
mwmnmuumwm

Particulars
G5T Demand for Financl Yaar 2015-18 (Net of Protest of T 1.55 lakh) 1492 .

ta [P
1] i'naf'l 11“d‘ a

fFor Koe

puthorised signatory
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in ? lakh, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 31(a): Commitments (as certilied by the management)

[l'mur: As At As At

Morch 31,2024 | March 31,2023 |
Estmated amount of contract remaining 1o bo executed on ccount of Capial
commitments (net of advances) ara LA

Note 32: Employmant banefits
Defined Contribution Plans

charged 1o stalement of proft and loss as they accrue, wmmumlmmmww stale insurance and labour wedare
aggregated 1o ¥ 63 53 lakh (March 31, 2023 T 65 B0 lakh) W

Defined bensfit plans

The Gratuty amount has baen computed based on respoctive employoe’s salary and the years of employment with the company Gratuity has been occrued based on sciuarial
walualion & at tha balance shaet date. camed by an independent actuliry During the currant year, the company has started o gratuity plan covening qualifying employces

The folowing table sets forth the status of the Graluity plan of the company and the gnised n the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss -
A) Gratuity - Funded

1. Net latility recognised in the Balance Sheet

As At As At
Particular Ma March 31, 20
Present value of dafined benefil odigation (11.14) B30
Net Liability / (asseis) recognised In Balance Shest [11.14) 831
11 (A). E gnised in the § of Profit and Loss
For tha year ended  For the year ended
o March 31, 2026 March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 11.54 1230
Interes! on net defined benafit Eabilty / (ussel) {062} (2.02
ised in the of Profit and Loss 11.22 10.28

It (B). Remeasurement recognised In the Other Comprehensive incame
For the year ended  For the year ended

Fary s March 31, 2024 March 3, 2023
Actuarial (gans) / Losses
- Changes in demagraphsc assumptions. 542 -
- Ghanges in financial assumptions 2596 (5.74)
- Expenence adjustments (17 04) 080
- Actual return on pian assets less inlerest on plan assels {2.03} 9.38
Remeasurament recognised in the Other Comprehensive incomes 121 4.24
. in the g t value of Benefit € o i i
of the year oF the year sn
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mare 3
Change in Defined Banefil Obkgation
Prasent value of Dofined Benefil Otilgation in the begining 18535 15207
Current Service Cost 11 B4 12.30
Interast on net defined benali Eabikty / (asset) 1226 1004
Aemeasurement due 1o
“- Changes in demographic assumphons. 542 -

“. Changes in financial assumphons 25.696 (5.74)
- Expenence adjustments {17.04) 080
Benefil pad {6.14) {383
Present value of Defined Bonefil Obligation at the end of the yoar 187.65 165.24

V. Movement in tha fair value of plan assets
For the yearended  For the year ended

Paniculars. March 31 " a1, 2023
Opening Fair vilue of plan assels 173.66 174.86
Emgloyer contrutions 26,36 12.08
Emplayes contributions 0.05
. Interest on pian assols 12.68 (9.38)
Aemaasurements due 10
Actust retum of plan assets less interest on plan assels 203 -
Benefits paid (6.14) (3.83)
Closing tasr value of plan assels 200.79 173,86
V. Bifurcation of Present value of defined benufit obligation at the end of the year
As AL As Ar
Panticulars Jikeie
Current Liabsity {Short Term) {14.89) -
Non-Curtent Liabdity (Long Term) {182 88) (165.35)

[197.45) [is838]




Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
{All amounts arg In ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated

Wi

Pacticatin As Al As At A Al As Al

Present bonald obkgation 81 the snd of the year 197.65 165.34 14222 86.23

Fair Value of Plan asseis al ihe end of ihe year 208.79 17366 131.49 116.78

1114 832 (10.72)) 30.58
VIl Principal Actuarial Assumptions used |o determine the benaefit obligations:
Particulars AL A% As hoed
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Drscount rate (par anmum) 7.20% 7.40%
Satary escalation rate (per annum) B.50% B8.00%)
Mortaity 100% of IALM{2012- | 100% of IALM{Z012:
14) 14)

Witharawal rate

Upto 30 Yoars 7.00% 11 00%
31-44 Years 4.00% 8.00%
45-50 Years 2.00% 8.00%
|51 and above years 2.00% :
The estimale of future salary ' In valuabion, lake account of inflation, senionty, promotion and ather relevant factors such as supply and

oomand factors in the employment mankel. Assumplons regardng monakty am based on publised slatstics and modtality tabies.

Viil. Sensitivity Analysis:
mmuw-smpmmmunmmummm“mmmmmmmnwmmnmmwmm rate, Sensitivity of gross

defined jon as mentionad above. in case of @ of significant ass| ‘would ba as under |
Particulars ar arch 31, 2024 Year onded March 31, 2023
Incraase Docrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {-/+0.50%) 18587 20712 150.83 171.00
Galary growth rate (-/+0.50%) 204 90 160 86 160.62 181,26
Allrition Rate(-/+50% of attrition ratos) 156.07 169 64 NA NIA
ortality Rateq-/+10% of morality rates) 16785 1687685 NA NIA
1X. Maturity Profile of Defined Benafit Obligation
Expected cash flow over the next | valued on undiscounted basis) “"!"g";'l“ -
1469
T0.72
107 47
258 48
[Compensated A )
L Principal Actuarial Assumptions .
A At As At
Particulars March 31, 2024 arch 31, 20
‘Actuanal Assumptions for Long Term Employes Benafis (Compensated Absences)
Discount rate (per snnum) 7a0% 740
Salary escalation rate (per annum) B.50% (.} ml
———

Note 33: Payment of Bonus Acl, 1565 was amended in 2015 vide gazetie notificalion on 01-Jan-2016 retrospectively trom 01-Apr-2014. Consequenily, higher provison fod
mlnlmwﬂnﬂlf.wllmmmmmrunWm1+lsummmmmmhmmam.Tmm;wmﬂw:w:tmwuﬂma
mmumnmummwmmmﬁm-mmahm The pany has fegal opinion suggesting that the
wummumuwwwmmnnCMmm

Nole 34: Related pany disclosures
hmmhlmnsza.mmwmmumﬂowmmmmmw of the as
and certfied by the managemant are as foSows.

(1) Names of related partios & nature of Relationship

a. Ultimate Holding company Wis. OF8 Tech Private Limied (wel. Fobruary 27, 2023)

b. Holding company M5 Koekeman Foods intermational bv., Holland (ceased w.e | February 27, 2029
s, OAGRI Farm Private Limited [w e { February 27, 2023)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Mr. Tamarish Sinha [we.t February 27, 2023]

Mr. Kapil Diev Kukrega [w.e 1. February 27, 2023

Mr. Vikas Kumar [w.of Aprl 18, 2023)

Mr. CJJ Kosleman [ceased v af. Fatruary 27, 2023]

Mr. Nagaraj B Gaonkar [ceased w a1, February 27, 2023]
Mr G P Natesha [ceased w e.l. February 27, 2023]

(i) The above has been 6 10 the extent such parties Nave been identified on ine bas:s of nf 1 provided By the ‘which has been
reded wpon by the audilors.
il. Details of related transactions are as follows:
Faor the year
For the year ended
Particulars . a0 |, endad "
28780 2454
228 -
218 -
Lutimata holding compaiy 5000 -
50.00 -
B1.45 35 65
- 151.00
Holding company + 7044 |
16.20
Ry managenal personnel - 10068
Dwaclors Ramunaration - 9334

For Koeleman India Private Limited

Authorised Signatory

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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Koeleman India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

I, Balances outstanding
Particulars Immn of cutstanding e s As A
h 34, 20 March 31, 2023
Utinate holdsng [Trage Payasies 8173 5783
Note 35: Segment reporting
Business Segmant:
The y'S busi saje of p g . There is enly one reportable business segment which is also thg primany reportable segment.
Revenues from theee major customers (March 31, 2023 Two o af the y Fep s dy ¥ 7,431.88 laich (March 31, 2023: ¢ 4,854.33 lakh),

which is mare than 10% of the company's lotal revenuoes.

Geographical Segment:
Secondary reportable segments are based on geographical locaton of customers These geographical segments have been disclosed based on revednues within and

outside India
As At As At
Geographical t
Segmen March 31, 2024 March 31, 20
Ausirala and New Zeatand £39233 451951
Euwope 2,488 45 803 56
Nosth Amenca 203502 244074
Isroel and Gull region 63025 411 66
Asia a11.01 572.46
11,457.05 874792

Note 38: Financial Risk Management Objective And Policies

The Vs | financial prises of & trade p and fi | assels i , rade los, cash and cash equivalents, elc.
nat derive directly from its op The y. fi il risk g is an integral part of Dusi plan and 1 of busi The company s
exposed to markel sk, credil rsk and liqudity sk, Tha of Direclors reviews. and agrees policies for managing each of theva risks, which afe summarized bolow

1) Market Risk
Barkel risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of 3 financial instrument will Nuctuate bocause of changes in markel prices, Markel risk comprises hree
types of fisk interest rate risk, foregn currency risk and other price sk such as equily price nisk and commadily risk. Financil instruments affected by markel risk
nclude foans, bomowings, and deposits.

(H}  Forelgn Currency Risk
Fomgnmmhuuumkmumnkvmuldu-uanmoimawﬂﬂm pecause of changes in loreign exchange rales. The company is
mnmumm:mmmmtmmmdhlmmmmmpﬂalummm,hmwlnmw-m
fuctuations arises mmamwmmmumedwm:ﬂvwn.mummmnmamu

mmmmmmmwamlwmw{mmm i assots and y Eabilies ot the ond of the
feporting perod as 1olows:

As Ar As Al
Particulars March 31, 2024 . Il:rm 31,2023

laki 9 ®in lakh

I in lakh a
Trade receivables
uso 2,180.18 B.34 685 53
Trade able
UsD e 202 037 3041
EURO - - -
Sensitivity analysis
humqmvgatnmR;pu.nmnnm_wusnwEunmmwm:wwumgmmemmm
pelow, This analysis (s based on foreign y exchange rate that the ¥ o be ,,___.‘:acmﬂulnmum.m

analysis assumes thal all other varaoias, in paticular interest rales, remain constant,

Effecton t| Effect on Profit
Change in basis | baefore tax for before tax for the
|Particulars points the year ended | year ended March
31, 2023
e500 0.40
USD (Net basis) - (0.40)
EURO (Net passs) e

() Interest rate risk
nmmmummmmlamuhmouwmmollnrwuwmmwlmmﬂwnmnwmnum,mmpW|
wnmfﬂdmwmmmwermmutmswwluww.m-mmwmmnuwm.

Thix of the s 5 10 interes! rate at e end of the e a8 folows.
As At
Particulars h 3,40
Variable ralé DOTOWINGS 1.884.77
—x(fotal SN
\a Pryy,
7
==
=
oy
Q
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